














NOTE: You can learn much more history by buying the West 
Windsor History Book at the museum or at 
westwindsorhistory.com/book

PRE-HISTORY: The area’s first inhabitants were 
members of an indigenous society called the “Leni 
Lenape.” Populating all of New Jersey and much of 
the surrounding states, they were peacekeepers 
and came into contact with Europeans starting in 
the 1520s. The Lenape that lived in present-day 
West Windsor were called the “Assanpinks.” 
Although colonial pressures forced most (but not all!) 
of them out of New Jersey by the early 1800s, their legacy 
persists in old documents, artifacts, and the local topography – notably 
the Assunpink Creek in southern West Windsor.

EUROPEAN SETTLEMENT: In the 1690s, absentee colonial landowners began 
to purchase vast tracts in the area. However, it was not until the late 1730s 



that the first large wave of 
settlers (primarily Dutch and 
English) began to live within 
what is now West Windsor. They 
transformed meadows and 
woodland into a vast agricul-
tural landscape (regrettably, 
often relying on slavery), with 
fields of crops stretching as far 
as the eye could see. A colonial 
road system connected several 
villages: Clarksville, Dutch 
Neck, Edinburg, Grovers Mill, 

Penns Neck, Scudders Mills, and Princeton. 

Yes - Princeton! Until 1797, the West Windsor area was part of a larger 
township called “Windsor Township.” It included all of present-day West 
Windsor, East Windsor, Robbinsville, and Hightstown, as well as all of 
Princeton southeast of Nassau Street and small bits of Millstone and Mon-
roe Townships.

REVOLUTIONARY TIMES: Amid the American Revolution, dozens of Windsor 
Township residents enlisted. The conflict hit home in late 1776/early 1777 
– including a consequential capture of British troops off Clarksville Road 
in West Windsor after the Battle of Trenton that may have helped George 
Washington win the Battles of Assunpink and Princeton. These victories 
helped provide a lifeline for the American cause during the darkest hours 
of the war.

After the war, Windsor resumed its quiet existence - except for a move-
ment to split the township. On February 9, 1797, Windsor Township officially 
divided into East Windsor and West Windsor (then still including all land in 
Princeton up to Nassau Street).



19TH CENTURY: In 1804, the Trenton-New Brunswick Turnpike (Route 1) was 
chartered. The Delaware & Raritan Canal opened for statewide commercial 
trade in 1834. In 1839, the Camden & Amboy Railroad laid tracks along the 
canal bank. Canal and rail traffic led to the rise of two more communities 
— Princeton Basin and Port Mercer.

Between 1838 and 1853, Princeton split from West Windsor and annexed all 
land east of the Delaware & Raritan Canal. In 1863, the Camden & Amboy 
Railroad realigned eastward to the present-day Northeast Corridor, spur-
ring the growth of another West Windsor community - Princeton Junction, 
surrounding the train station.

20TH CENTURY: In 1917, Dutch Neck and Penns Neck Schools replaced the 
small wooden schoolhouses that had collectively served local youth since 

the 1700s. Berrien City, our town’s 
first planned development, rose 
in Princeton Junction south of the 
train station in the 1920s - the 
same decades our two volunteer 
fire companies formed. 

In 1938, West Windsor was thrust 
into the national spotlight during 
Orson Welles’ “The War of the 



Worlds” radio play, which pinpointed the 
community of Grovers Mill as the site of 
a Martian landing. While the purported 
national panic that followed was ex-
aggerated, it remains one of our town’s 
most infamous events.

Following World War II, suburban devel-
opments began to replace farmland as 
our town’s population grew. In 1969, West 
Windsor and Plainsboro consolidated 
their school districts, Maurice Hawk and 
High School South opened in 1964 and 
1973 (respectively), and in 1977, the current Municipal Center fully opened.

But the most dramatic change was yet to come. Between 1980 and 2000, 
West Windsor’s population surged from 8,500 to 22,000 residents. Many 
more schools and roads were built, replacing centuries-old farmland and 
houses. And West Windsor rapidly diversified into a multi-ethnic, multi-ra-
cial, multi-cultural community.
 
21ST CENTURY: West Windsor today is a bustling suburban municipality with 

tens of thousands of residents. 
However, there are still hundreds 
of historic sites and centuries of 
history to celebrate. Our commu-
nity heritage belongs to all of us 
- whether our families have lived 
here for two weeks or two hundred 
years. Help the Historical Society 
preserve and promote West Wind-
sor’s past present, and future!




